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An Emergency Preparedness Survey was 

conducted by the Indiana Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.73.

Survey Date:  02/06/24

Facility Number: 000524

Provider Number: 155617

AIM Number: 100267090

At this Emergency Preparedness survey, Waters 

of Chesterfield Skilled Nursing Facility was found 

not in compliance with Emergency Preparedness 

Requirements for Medicare and Medicaid 

Participating Providers and Suppliers, 42 CFR 

483.73. The facility has a capacity of 60 and had a 

census of 44 at the time of this survey.

Quality Review completed on 02/08/24

The requirements of 42 CFR, Subpart 483.73 are 

Not Met as evidenced by:

E 0000 DISCLAIMER STATEMENT:  

Preparation and/or execution 

of this plan of correction in 

general, or this corrective 

action, does not constitute an 

admission or agreement by this 

facility of the facts alleged or 

conclusions set forth in this 

statement of deficiencies.  The 

plan of correction and specific 

corrective actions are prepared 

and/or executed in compliance 

with state and federal laws.  

This plan of correction 

constitutes a written allegation 

of substantial compliance with 

Federal Medicare and 

Medicaid requirements.

 

403.748(d)(2), 416.54(d)(2), 418.113(d)(2), 

441.184(d)(2), 482.15(d)(2), 483.475(d)(2), 

483.73(d)(2), 484.102(d)(2), 485.625(d)(2), 

485.68(d)(2), 485.727(d)(2), 485.920(d)(2), 

486.360(d)(2), 491.12(d)(2), 494.62(d)(2) 

EP Testing Requirements 

§416.54(d)(2), §418.113(d)(2), §441.184(d)(2), 

§460.84(d)(2), §482.15(d)(2), §483.73(d)(2), 

§483.475(d)(2), §484.102(d)(2), §485.68(d)(2),  

§485.625(d)(2), §485.727(d)(2), §485.920(d)

(2), §491.12(d)(2), §494.62(d)(2).

*[For ASCs at §416.54, CORFs at §485.68, 

OPO, "Organizations" under §485.727, 

E 0039
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CMHCs at §485.920, RHCs/FQHCs at 

§491.12, and ESRD Facilities at §494.62]:

(2) Testing. The [facility] must conduct 

exercises to test the emergency plan 

annually. The [facility] must do all of the 

following:

(i) Participate in a full-scale exercise that is 

community-based every 2 years; or

 (A) When a community-based exercise is 

not accessible, conduct a facility-based 

functional exercise every 2 years; or

(B) If the [facility] experiences an actual 

natural or man-made emergency that requires 

activation of the emergency plan, the [facility] 

is exempt from engaging in its next required 

community-based or individual, facility-based 

functional exercise following the onset of the 

actual event.

(ii) Conduct an additional exercise at least 

every 2 years, opposite the year the full-scale 

or functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)

(i) of this section is conducted, that may 

include, but is not limited to the following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or individual, facility-based 

functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is 

led by a facilitator and includes a group 

discussion using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the [facility's] response to and 

maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events, and revise 

the [facility's] emergency plan, as needed. 
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*[For Hospices at 418.113(d):] 

(2)  Testing for hospices that provide care in 

the patient's home.  The hospice must 

conduct exercises to test the emergency 

plan at least annually.  The hospice must do 

the following:

(i)  Participate in a full-scale exercise that is 

community based every 2 years; or

(A) When a community based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an individual facility 

based functional exercise every 2 years; or  

(B) If the hospice experiences a natural or 

man-made emergency that requires activation 

of the emergency plan, the hospital is 

exempt from engaging in its next required full 

scale community-based exercise or individual 

facility-based functional exercise following the 

onset of the emergency event.

(ii)  Conduct an additional exercise every 2 

years, opposite the year the full-scale or 

functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)(i) 

of this section is conducted, that may 

include, but is not limited to the following:

(A)  A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or a facility based 

functional exercise; or

(B)  A mock disaster drill; or

(C)  A tabletop exercise or workshop that is 

led by a facilitator and includes a group 

discussion using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(3) Testing for hospices that provide inpatient 

care directly.  The hospice must conduct 

exercises to test the emergency plan twice 

per year.  The hospice must do the following:

FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete Event ID: RI9F21 Facility ID: 000524 If continuation sheet Page 3 of 22
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(i)  Participate in an annual full-scale exercise 

that is community-based; or 

(A) When a community-based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an annual individual 

facility-based functional exercise; or  

(B) If the hospice experiences a natural or 

man-made emergency that requires activation 

of the emergency plan, the hospice is 

exempt from engaging in its next required 

full-scale community based or facility-based 

functional exercise following the onset of the 

emergency event.

(ii)  Conduct an additional annual exercise 

that may include, but is not limited to the 

following:

(A)  A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or a facility based 

functional exercise; or

(B)  A mock disaster drill; or

(C)  A tabletop exercise or workshop led by a 

facilitator that includes a group discussion 

using a narrated, clinically-relevant 

emergency scenario, and a set of problem 

statements, directed messages, or prepared 

questions designed to challenge an 

emergency plan.

(iii)  Analyze the hospice's response to and 

maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events and revise 

the hospice's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For PRFTs at §441.184(d), Hospitals at 

§482.15(d), CAHs at §485.625(d):]

(2) Testing. The [PRTF, Hospital, CAH] must 

conduct exercises to test the emergency 

plan twice per year.  The [PRTF, Hospital, 

CAH] must do the following:

(i)  Participate in an annual full-scale exercise 

that is community-based; or 
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(A) When a community-based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an annual individual, 

facility-based functional exercise; or  

(B) If the [PRTF, Hospital, CAH]  experiences 

an actual natural or man-made emergency 

that requires activation of the emergency 

plan, the [facility] is exempt from engaging in 

its next required full-scale community based 

or individual, facility-based functional exercise 

following the onset of the emergency event.

 (ii) Conduct an [additional] annual 

exercise or and that may include, but is not 

limited to the following:

 (A) A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or individual, a 

facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that 

is led by a facilitator and includes a group 

discussion, using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the [facility's] response to 

and maintain documentation of all drills, 

tabletop exercises, and emergency events 

and revise the [facility's] emergency plan, as 

needed.

*[For PACE at §460.84(d):] 

(2) Testing. The PACE organization must 

conduct exercises to test the emergency 

plan at least annually. The PACE 

organization must do the following:

(i)  Participate in an annual full-scale exercise 

that is community-based; or 

(A) When a community-based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an annual individual, 

facility-based functional exercise; or  
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(B) If the PACE experiences an actual natural 

or man-made emergency that requires 

activation of the emergency plan, the PACE 

is exempt from engaging in its next required 

full-scale community based or individual, 

facility-based functional exercise following the 

onset of the emergency event.

(ii) Conduct an additional exercise every 

2 years opposite the year the full-scale or 

functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)(i) 

of this section is conducted that may include, 

but is not limited to the following:

(A)  A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or individual, a facility 

based functional exercise; or

(B)  A mock disaster drill; or

(C)  A tabletop exercise or workshop that is 

led by a facilitator and includes a group 

discussion, using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii)  Analyze the PACE's response to and 

maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events and revise 

the PACE's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For LTC Facilities at §483.73(d):] 

(2) The [LTC facility] must conduct exercises 

to test the emergency plan at least twice per 

year, including unannounced staff drills using 

the emergency procedures.  The [LTC facility, 

ICF/IID] must do the following:

(i)  Participate in an annual full-scale exercise 

that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an annual individual, 

facility-based functional exercise. 

(B) If the [LTC facility] facility experiences an 
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actual natural or man-made emergency that 

requires activation of the emergency plan, the 

LTC facility is exempt from engaging its next 

required a full-scale community-based or 

individual, facility-based functional exercise 

following the onset of the emergency event.

(ii)  Conduct an additional annual exercise 

that may include, but is not limited to the 

following:

(A)  A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or an individual, facility 

based functional exercise; or

(B)  A mock disaster drill; or

(C)  A tabletop exercise or workshop that is 

led by a facilitator includes a group 

discussion, using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii)  Analyze the [LTC facility] facility's 

response to and maintain documentation of 

all drills, tabletop exercises, and emergency 

events, and revise the [LTC facility] facility's 

emergency plan, as needed.

*[For ICF/IIDs at §483.475(d)]: 

(2) Testing. The ICF/IID must conduct 

exercises to test the emergency plan at least 

twice per year. The ICF/IID must do the 

following:

(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise 

that is community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an annual individual, 

facility-based functional exercise; or.

(B) If the ICF/IID experiences an actual 

natural or man-made emergency that requires 

activation of the emergency plan, the ICF/IID 

is exempt from engaging in its next required 
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full-scale community-based or individual, 

facility-based functional exercise following the 

onset of the emergency event.

(ii) Conduct an additional annual exercise 

that may include, but is not limited to the 

following:

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or an individual, 

facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that is 

led by a facilitator and includes a group 

discussion, using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the ICF/IID's response to and 

maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events, and revise 

the ICF/IID's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For HHAs at §484.102]

(d)(2) Testing. The HHA must conduct 

exercises to test the emergency plan at

least annually. The HHA must do the 

following:

(i) Participate in a full-scale exercise that is 

community-based; or

(A) When a community-based exercise 

is not accessible, conduct an annual 

individual, facility-based functional exercise 

every 2 years; or.

 (B) If the HHA experiences an actual 

natural or man-made emergency that requires 

activation of the emergency plan, the HHA is 

exempt from engaging in its next required 

full-scale community-based or individual, 

facility based functional exercise following the 

onset of the emergency event.
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(ii) Conduct an additional exercise every 2 

years, opposite the year the full-scale or 

functional exercise under paragraph (d)(2)(i) 

of this section is conducted, that may 

include, but is not limited to the following: 

(A) A second full-scale exercise that is 

community-based or an individual, 

facility-based functional exercise; or

(B) A mock disaster drill; or

(C) A tabletop exercise or workshop that 

is led by a facilitator and includes a group 

discussion, using a narrated, 

clinically-relevant emergency scenario, and a 

set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed 

to challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the HHA's response to and 

maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events, and revise 

the HHA's emergency plan, as needed.

*[For OPOs at §486.360] 

(d)(2) Testing. The OPO must conduct 

exercises to test the emergency plan. The 

OPO must do the following: 

(i) Conduct a paper-based, tabletop exercise 

or workshop at least annually. A tabletop 

exercise is led by a facilitator and includes a 

group discussion, using a narrated, clinically 

relevant emergency scenario, and a set of 

problem statements, directed messages, or 

prepared questions designed to challenge an 

emergency plan. If the OPO experiences an 

actual natural or man-made emergency that 

requires activation of the emergency plan, the 

OPO is exempt from engaging in its next 

required testing exercise following the onset 

of the emergency event.

(ii) Analyze the OPO's response to and 

maintain documentation of all tabletop 
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exercises, and emergency events, and revise 

the [RNHCI's and OPO's] emergency plan, as 

needed.

*[ RNCHIs at §403.748]:

(d)(2) Testing. The RNHCI must conduct 

exercises to test the emergency plan. The 

RNHCI must do the following:

(i) Conduct a paper-based, tabletop exercise 

at least annually. A tabletop exercise is a 

group discussion led by a facilitator, using a 

narrated, clinically-relevant emergency 

scenario, and a set of problem statements, 

directed messages, or prepared questions 

designed to challenge an emergency plan.

(ii) Analyze the RNHCI's response to and 

maintain documentation of all tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events, and revise 

the RNHCI's emergency plan, as needed.

Based on record review and interview, the facility 

failed to conduct exercises to test the emergency 

plan at least twice per year, including 

unannounced staff drills using the emergency 

procedures. The LTC facility must do the 

following: 

(i) Participate in an annual full-scale exercise that 

is community-based; or

a. When a community-based exercise is not 

accessible, conduct an annual individual, 

facility-based functional exercise. 

b. If the LTC facility experiences an actual natural 

or man-made emergency that requires activation 

of the emergency plan, the LTC facility is exempt 

from engaging its next required full-scale in a 

community-based or individual, facility-based 

full-scale functional exercise for 1 year following 

the onset of the actual event. 

(ii) Conduct an additional exercise that may 

include, but is not limited to the following:

a. A second full-scale exercise that is 

E 0039 E039 – It is the intent of the facility 

to ensure to conduct exercises to 

test the emergency plan at least 

twice per year, including 

unannounced staff drills using the 

emergency procedures to meet 

set standards.

1       CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

TAKEN:

a       On 2/13/24 the 

Administrator and the DON/ 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

conducted a full-scale 

community-based exercise and 

documented the results in the Life 

Safety Binder to meet set 

standards.

2       ALL OTHERS WITH 

POTENTIAL TO BE AFFECTED:

a       All residents and all staff 

and visitors have the potential to 

03/01/2024  12:00:00AM
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community-based or an individual, facility-based 

functional exercise.

b. A mock disaster drill; or 

c. A tabletop exercise or workshop that is led by a 

facilitator that includes a group discussion, using 

a narrated, clinically-relevant emergency scenario, 

and a set of problem statements, directed 

messages, or prepared questions designed to 

challenge an emergency plan.

(iii) Analyze the LTC facility's response to and 

maintain documentation of all drills, tabletop 

exercises, and emergency events, and revise the 

LTC facility's emergency plan, as needed in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.73(d)(2). This 

deficient practice could affect all occupants.

Findings include:

Based on records review with the Maintenance 

Supervisor (MS) on 02/06/24 at 11:30 a.m., there 

was full documentation for two table top exercises 

conducted on 02/14/23 and 10/20/23 but no record 

of a community-based exercise or a facility based 

full-scale exercise. Based on interview at the time 

of records review, the MS agreed that there was 

no record of a required community-based or 

facility-based full-scale exercise conducted within 

the past year. 

This finding was reviewed with the MS and 

Assistant Director of Nursing at the exit 

conference.

be affected but none were. 

3       MEASURES TO PREVENT 

REOCCURRENCE:

a       On 2/13/24 the 

Administrator in serviced the DON/ 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

on the requirement that a full-scale 

community-based exercise must 

be conducted annually and 

documentation retained to meet 

set standards.

b       DON/Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will work with 

the Administrator to ensure full 

scale community-based exercise 

is conducted annually and 

documentation retained to meet 

set standards.   If any issues are 

discovered, they will be addressed 

and resolved immediately.     

c       The Administrator will 

monitor adherence to the 

Emergency Preparedness Policy 

Manual and validate the 

documentation is in place.

4       MONITORING 

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

a       At least annually to ensure 

compliance, the Administrator and 

DON/Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will review the 

Emergency Preparedness Policy 

Manual and conduct required 

exercises and make changes as 

necessary to meet set standards.  

Those reviews will be documented 

as appropriate. The Administrator 

will present the training results at 

the Quality Assurance/ 

Performance Improvement (QA/PI) 
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meeting.  Results and system 

components will be reviewed by 

the QA/PI Committee with 

subsequent plans of correction 

developed and implemented as 

deemed necessary to ensure 

compliance is maintained.

 

This plan of correction 

constitutes our credible 

allegation of compliance with 

all regulatory requirements.  

Our date of compliance is 

3/1/24.        

 K 0000

 

Bldg. 01

A Life Safety Code Recertification and State 

Licensure Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

Department of Health in accordance with 42 CFR 

483.90(a).

Survey Date:  02/06/24

Facility Number:  000524

Provider Number: 155617

AIM Number: 100267090

At this Life Safety Code survey, Waters of 

Chesterfield Skilled Nursing Facility was found 

not in compliance with Requirements for 

Participation in Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR 

Subpart 483.90(a), Life Safety from Fire and the 

2012 edition of the National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety Code (LSC), 

Chapter 19, Existing Health Care Occupancies and 

410 IAC 16.2.

This one story facility was determined to be of 

K 0000 DISCLAIMER STATEMENT:  

Preparation and/or execution 

of this plan of correction in 

general, or this corrective 

action, does not constitute an 

admission or agreement by this 

facility of the facts alleged or 

conclusions set forth in this 

statement of deficiencies.  The 

plan of correction and specific 

corrective actions are prepared 

and/or executed in compliance 

with state and federal laws.  

This plan of correction 

constitutes a written allegation 

of substantial compliance with 

Federal Medicare and 

Medicaid requirements.
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Type VIII construction and was fully sprinklered.  

The facility has a fire alarm system with smoke 

detection in the corridors, areas open to the 

corridors and battery operated smoke detectors in 

the resident sleeping rooms. The facility has a 

capacity of 60 and had a census of 44 at the time 

of this survey.

All areas where the residents have customary 

access were sprinklered.  All areas providing 

facility services were sprinklered.

Quality Review completed on 02/08/24

NFPA 101 

Means of Egress - General 

Means of Egress - General

Aisles, passageways, corridors, exit 

discharges, exit locations, and accesses are 

in accordance with Chapter 7, and the means 

of egress is continuously maintained free of 

all obstructions to full use in case of 

emergency, unless modified by 18/19.2.2 

through 18/19.2.11. 

18.2.1, 19.2.1, 7.1.10.1

K 0211

SS=E

Bldg. 01

Based on observation and interview, the facility 

failed to ensure 2 of 4 corridor means of egresses 

were continuously maintained free of 

obstructions. LSC 19.2.3.4 (4) states projections 

into the required width shall be permitted for 

wheeled equipment, provided that all of the 

following conditions are met:

(a) The wheeled equipment does not reduce the 

clear unobstructed corridor width to less than 60 

in.(1525 mm).

(b) The health care occupancy fire safety plan and 

training program address the relocation of the 

wheeled equipment during a fire or similar 

emergency.

(c)The wheeled equipment is limited to the 

K 0211 K211– It is the intent of the facility 

to ensure corridor means of 

egress are continuously 

maintained free of all obstructions 

to meet set standards.

1       CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

TAKEN:

a       On 2/13/2024 the 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

replaced the PPE carts in two 

resident halls including to have 

wheels on them to meet set 

standards.  The Administrator 

verified the work on 2/13/2024.      

2       ALL OTHERS WITH 

03/01/2024  12:00:00AM
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following:

i. Equipment in use and carts in use

ii. Medical emergency equipment not in use

iii. Patient lift and transport equipment

This deficient practice affects 10 residents in the 

facility. 

Findings include:

Based on an observation during a tour of the 

facility with the Maintenance Supervisor (MS) on 

02/06/24 at 12:35 p.m. and 01:10 p.m., in two 

resident halls, Personal Protective Equipment 

(PPE) carts were in use but were not equipped 

with wheels allowing the carts to be moved out of 

the halls during an emergency. The PPE carts were 

observed by rooms 108 and 211. Based on an 

interview at the time of observations, the MS 

stated the PPE carts are not equipped with wheels 

but I can install wheels to them. 

The finding was reviewed with the Assistant 

Director of Nursing and the MS during the exit 

conference. 

3.1-19(b)

POTENTIAL TO BE AFFECTED:

a       All residents and all staff 

and visitors have the potential to 

be affected but none were.  On 

2/13/2024 the Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee inspected all 

corridors for obstructions and 

found no other negative findings.

3       MEASURES TO PREVENT 

REOCCURRENCE:

a       On 2/12/24 the 

Administrator inserviced the 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

on the requirement to ensure 

means of egress are continuously 

maintained free of all obstructions 

to meet set standards. On 2/22/24 

the Administrator inserviced the 

staff on the requirement to ensure 

means of egress are continuously 

maintained free of all obstructions 

to meet set standards.

b       Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will inspect 

all corridors weekly to ensure they 

are continuously maintained free 

of all obstructions as a part of the 

facility’s Preventive Maintenance 

Program and document those 

inspection results as appropriate.   

If any issues are discovered, they 

will be addressed and resolved 

immediately.  The Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will review 

with the Administrator the 

inspection results.   

c       The Administrator will 

monitor adherence to the 

Preventative Maintenance 

schedule and validate the 
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Preventative Maintenance 

documentation is in place.

4       MONITORING 

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

a       The inspection results will 

be presented by the Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee to the 

Administrator monthly and the 

Administrator will present the 

inspection results at the monthly 

Quality Assurance/Performance 

Improvement (QA/PI) meeting.  

Inspection results and system 

components will be reviewed by 

the QA/PI Committee with 

subsequent plans of correction 

developed and implemented as 

deemed necessary to ensure 

compliance is maintained.

 

This plan of correction 

constitutes our credible 

allegation of compliance with 

all regulatory requirements.  

Our date of compliance is 

3/1/24.                         

NFPA 101 

Sprinkler System - Maintenance and Testing 

Sprinkler System - Maintenance and Testing

Automatic sprinkler and standpipe systems 

are inspected, tested, and maintained in 

accordance with NFPA 25, Standard for the 

Inspection, Testing, and Maintaining of 

Water-based Fire Protection Systems. 

Records of system design, maintenance, 

inspection and testing are maintained in a 

secure location and readily available. 

  a) Date sprinkler system last checked   

_____________________

K 0353

SS=F

Bldg. 01
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  b) Who provided system test  

____________________________

  c) Water system supply source  

__________________________

Provide in REMARKS information on 

coverage for any non-required or partial 

automatic sprinkler system.

9.7.5, 9.7.7, 9.7.8, and NFPA 25

Based on record review and interview, the facility 

failed to maintain automatic sprinkler systems in 

accordance with NFPA 25.  LSC 9.7.5 requires all 

sprinkler systems shall be inspected, tested, and 

maintained in accordance with NFPA 25, Standard 

for the Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance of 

Water-Based Fire Protection Systems.  NFPA 25, 

2011 Edition, Section 4.1.4.1 states the property 

owner or designated representative shall correct 

or repair deficiencies or impairments that are 

found during the inspection, test and maintenance 

required by this standard.  Corrections and repairs 

shall be performed by qualified maintenance 

personnel or a qualified contractor.  NFPA 25, 

4.3.1 requires records shall be made for all 

inspections, tests, and maintenance of the system 

components and shall be made available to the 

authority having jurisdiction upon request.  This 

deficient practice could affect all residents, staff, 

and visitors in the facility.

Findings include:

Based on review of "Sprinkler: Five Year Internal 

Pipe Inspection" documentation dated 03/17/20 

during record review with the Maintenance 

Supervisor (MS) at 12:10 p.m. on 02/06/24, the 5 

year internal pipe inspection documentation 

recommended the sprinkler system be flushed.  

Based on interview at the time of record review, 

the MS stated the flush was completed by the 

previous company with qualified staff but 

K 0353 K353 – It is the intent of the 

facility to ensure to maintain the 

automatic sprinkler system in 

accordance with NFPA 25 to meet 

set standards.

 

   1.CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

TAKEN:

        1.On 2/26/24 the 

Maintenance Supervisor/Designee 

will obtain the paperwork from the 

facilities licensed sprinkler 

contractor on the 5-year internal 

pipe inspection and documented 

the results in the Life Safety 

Binder to meet set standards. 

   2.ALL OTHERS WITH 

POTENTIAL TO BE AFFECTED:

        1.All residents and all staff 

and visitors have the potential to 

be affected but none were. 

   3.MEASURES TO PREVENT 

REOCCURRENCE:

a       The Administrator in 

serviced the Maintenance 

Supervisor that deficiencies noted 

on the five-year internal pipe 

inspection must be completed and 

documented to meet set 

standards. 

        1.Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will ensure 

03/01/2024  12:00:00AM
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documentation was not available for review.  

This finding was reviewed with the Assistant 

Director of Nursing and MS at the exit conference.

3.1-19(b)

the sprinkler systems are 

maintained and necessary testing 

is performed on the sprinkler 

system as a part of the facility’s 

monthly Preventive Maintenance 

Program and document those 

inspection results as appropriate.   

If any issues are discovered, they 

will be addressed and resolved 

immediately.  The Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will review 

with the Administrator the 

inspection results.   

        2.The Administrator will 

monitor adherence to the 

Preventative Maintenance 

schedule and validate the 

Preventative Maintenance 

documentation is in place.

   1.MONITORING CORRECTIVE 

ACTION:

        1.The inspection results will 

be presented by the Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee to the 

Administrator monthly and the 

Administrator will present the 

inspection results at the monthly 

Quality Assurance/Performance 

Improvement (QA/PI) meeting.  

Inspection results and system 

components will be reviewed by 

the QA/PI Committee with 

subsequent plans of correction 

developed and implemented as 

deemed necessary to ensure 

compliance is maintained.

 

This plan of correction 

constitutes our credible 

allegation of compliance with 
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all regulatory requirements.  

Our date of compliance is 

3/1/24.                                 

NFPA 101 

Utilities - Gas and Electric 

Utilities - Gas and Electric

Equipment using gas or related gas piping 

complies with NFPA 54, National Fuel Gas 

Code, electrical wiring and equipment 

complies with NFPA 70, National Electric 

Code. Existing installations can continue in 

service provided no hazard to life. 

18.5.1.1, 19.5.1.1, 9.1.1, 9.1.2

K 0511

SS=E

Bldg. 01

1. Based on observation and interview, the facility 

failed to ensure electrical wirings were protected. 

NFPA 70, 2011 Edition. Article 406.5 (F) Exposed 

Terminals, Receptacles shall be enclosed so that 

live wiring terminals are not exposed to contact. 

This deficient practice could affect staff, residents 

and visitors in the front yard.

Findings include:

Based on observation during a tour of the facility 

with the Maintenance Supervisor (MS) on 

02/06/24 at 12:25 p.m. in the front yard there was 

an outside electrical receptacle with the cover 

missing leaving exposed wires. There was a light 

fixture attached to the top of the electrical box that 

was broken exposing wires. Based on interview at 

the time of observation, the MS acknowledged the 

aforementioned condition and confirmed that 

exposed wiring was visible. The MS stated that it 

looked like someone ran into it.

This finding was reviewed with the Assistant 

Director of Nursing and MS at the exit conference.

3.1-19(b)

K 0511 K511 – It is the intent of the 

facility to ensure electrical wirings 

are protected and to ensure 

electrical panels in the halls are 

secured from non-authorized 

personnel to meet set standards.

   1.CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

TAKEN:

a       On 2/15/24 the Maintenance 

Supervisor replaced the outside 

electrical receptacle and electrical 

box in the front yard to meet set 

standards.  The Administrator 

verified the work on 2/16/24.

b      On 2/15/24 the Maintenance 

Supervisor locked the electrical 

panel in the 100 hall to meet set 

standards.  The Administrator 

verified the work on 2/16/24. 

   1.ALL OTHERS WITH 

POTENTIAL TO BE AFFECTED:

        1.All residents and all staff 

and visitors have the potential to 

be affected but none were.   

   2.MEASURES TO PREVENT 

REOCCURRENCE:

03/01/2024  12:00:00AM
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2. Based on observation and interview, the facility 

failed to ensure 1 of 2 electrical panel in the 100 

hall was secured from non-authorized personnel. 

NFPA 70, 2011 edition states 230.62 Energized 

parts of service equipment shall be enclosed as 

specified in 230.62(A) or guarded as specified in 

230.62(B).

(A) Enclosed. Energized parts shall be enclosed 

so that they will not be exposed to accidental 

contact or shall be guarded as in 230.62(B).

(B) Guarded. Energized parts that are not enclosed 

shall be installed on a switchboard, panelboard, or 

control board and guarded in accordance with 

110.18 and 110.27. Where energized parts are 

guarded as provided in 110.27(A)(1) and (A)(2), a 

means for locking or sealing doors providing 

access to energized parts shall be provided. This 

deficient practice could affect staff and residents 

in the 100 hall.

Findings include:

Based on observation with Maintenance 

Supervisor (MS) on 02/06/24 at 12:30 p.m., an 

electrical panel in the 100 hall was unlocked when 

tested. The panel included breakers to the lights, 

emergency lighting, and outlets in the 100 hall. 

Based on interview at the time of observation, the 

MS stated the electrical panel will need to be 

locked.

This finding was reviewed at the exit conference 

with the MS and Assistant Director of Nursing.

3.1-19(b)

        1.On 2/12/24 the 

Administrator inserviced the 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

on the requirement to ensure 

electrical wirings are protected, 

including outside electrical 

receptacles, and ensure all 

electrical panels are secured from 

non-authorized personnel to meet 

set standards.

        2.Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will ensure 

electrical wirings are protected, 

including outside electrical 

receptacles, and ensure all 

electrical panels are secured from 

non-authorized personnel as a part 

of the facility’s monthly Preventive 

Maintenance Program and 

document those inspection results 

as appropriate.   If any issues are 

discovered, they will be addressed 

and resolved immediately.  The 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

will review with the Administrator 

the inspection results.   

        3.The Administrator will 

monitor adherence to the 

Preventative Maintenance 

schedule and validate the 

Preventative Maintenance 

documentation is in place.

   3.MONITORING CORRECTIVE 

ACTION:

        1.The inspection results will 

be presented by the Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee to the 

Administrator monthly and the 

Administrator will present the 

inspection results at the monthly 
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Quality Assurance/Performance 

Improvement (QA/PI) meeting.  

Inspection results and system 

components will be reviewed by 

the QA/PI Committee with 

subsequent plans of correction 

developed and implemented as 

deemed necessary to ensure 

compliance is maintained.

 

This plan of correction 

constitutes our credible 

allegation of compliance with 

all regulatory requirements.  

Our date of compliance is 

3/1/24.                         

K 0761

SS=F

Bldg. 01

Based on records review, and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure annual inspection and 

testing of  fire door assemblies were completed in 

accordance of LSC 19.1.1.4.1.1 communicating 

openings in dividing fire barriers required by 

19.1.1.4.1 shall be permitted only in corridors and 

shall be protected by approved self-closing fire 

door assemblies. (See also Section 8.3.) LSC 

8.3.3.1 Openings required to have a fire protection 

rating by Table 8.3.4.2 shall be protected by 

approved, listed, labeled fire door assemblies and 

fire window assemblies and their accompanying 

hardware, including all frames, closing devices, 

anchorage, and sills in accordance with the 

requirements of NFPA 80, Standard for Fire Doors 

and Other Opening Protectives, except as 

otherwise specified in this Code. NFPA 80 5.2.1 

states fire door assemblies shall be inspected and 

tested not less than annually, and a written record 

of the inspection shall be signed and kept for 

K 0761 K761 – It is the intent of the 

facility to ensure annual inspection 

and testing of all fire door 

assemblies are completed in 

accordance of LSC 19.1.1.4.1.1 

communicating openings in 

dividing fire barriers required by 

19.1.1.4.1 shall be permitted only 

in corridors and shall be protected 

by approved self-closing fire door 

assemblies to meet set 

standards.

1       CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

TAKEN:

a       On 11/9/23 the Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee conducted 

the annual inspection for the fire 

door assemblies and documented 

the itemized inspection results on 

the Annual Door Inspections log to 

03/01/2024  12:00:00AM
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inspection by the AHJ. NFPA 80, 5.2.4.1 states fire 

door assemblies shall be visually inspected from 

both sides to assess the overall condition of door 

assembly. NFPA 80, 5.2.4.2 states as a minimum, 

the following items shall be verified: 

(1) No open holes or breaks exist in surfaces of 

either the door or frame.

(2) Glazing, vision light frames, and glazing beads 

are intact and securely fastened in place, if so 

equipped.

(3) The door, frame, hinges, hardware, and 

noncombustible threshold are secured, aligned, 

and in working order with no visible signs of 

damage.

(4) No parts are missing or broken.

(5) Door clearances do not exceed clearances 

listed in 4.8.4 and 6.3.1.7.

(6) The self-closing device is operational; that is, 

the active door completely closes when operated 

from the full open position.

(7) If a coordinator is installed, the inactive leaf 

closes before the active leaf.

(8) Latching hardware operates and secures the 

door when it is in the closed position.

(9) Auxiliary hardware items that interfere or 

prohibit operation are not installed on the door or 

frame.

(10) No field modifications to the door assembly 

have been performed that void the label.

(11) Gasketing and edge seals, where required, are 

inspected to verify their presence and integrity.

This deficient practice could affect all residents.

Findings include:

Based on record review with the Maintenance 

Supervisor (MS) on 02/06/24 at 11:30 a.m.  

documentation of an annual inspection for the fire 

door assemblies was available for review was 

completed 11/09/23 but was not itemized. Based 

meet set standards.  The 

Administrator verified the 

inspections and documentation on 

2/13/24.      

2       ALL OTHERS WITH 

POTENTIAL TO BE AFFECTED:

a       All residents and all staff 

and visitors have the potential to 

be affected but none were. 

3       MEASURES TO PREVENT 

REOCCURRENCE:

a       On 2/12/24 the 

Administrator/Corporate Property 

Manager inserviced the 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

on the requirement that annual 

testing & inspections of fire door 

assemblies must be conducted to 

ensure proper operation and 

itemized and documented on the 

Annual Door Inspections log to 

meet set standards.

b       Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee will conduct 

the annual inspection of fire door 

assemblies to ensure proper 

operation and document the 

itemized inspection results on the 

Annual Door Inspection log as a 

part of the facility’s Preventive 

Maintenance Program and 

document those inspection results 

as appropriate.   If any issues are 

discovered, they will be addressed 

and resolved immediately.  The 

Maintenance Supervisor/designee 

will review with the Administrator 

the inspection results.    

c       The Administrator will 

monitor adherence to the 
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on interview at the time of records review, the MS 

stated the annual fire door inspection was 

completed but was unaware that it must be 

itemized.. 

This finding was reviewed with the Assistant 

Director of Nursing and MS at the exit conference.

3.1-19(b)

Preventative Maintenance 

schedule and validate the 

Preventative Maintenance 

documentation is in place.

4       MONITORING 

CORRECTIVE ACTION:

a       The inspection results will 

be presented by the Maintenance 

Supervisor/designee to the 

Administrator monthly and the 

Administrator will present the 

inspection results at the monthly 

Quality Assurance/Performance 

Improvement (QA/PI) meeting.  

Inspection results and system 

components will be reviewed by 

the QA/PI Committee with 

subsequent plans of correction 

developed and implemented as 

deemed necessary to ensure 

compliance is maintained.

 

This plan of correction 

constitutes our credible 

allegation of compliance with 

all regulatory requirements.  

Our date of compliance is 

3/1/24.                         
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